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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

July 6, 2005

[Members Present:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]

Called to Order: 1:06 p.m.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I’ll call the July meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order and welcome all of you to the meeting.  Before I ask our representative from the County Attorney’s office for some remarks, is Mr. Kiser here for the first case or a representative for Mr. Kiser?  Okay.  And is Ms. Canzater here?  Alright, maybe they’ll show up.  I’m going to ask Mr. Brad Farrar, from the County Attorney’s office, to make some preliminary remarks regarding procedures before the Board.  


MR. FARRAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Good afternoon, I’m Brad Farrar from the Richland County Attorney’s office.  The Board, we have 10 cases on the agenda today, however three have been deferred and you heard the Chairman talk about a couple of them.  First case, 05-70-SE, Danny Kiser, has been deferred.  That’s 8741 Wilson Boulevard.  Case C, 05-77 Special Exception at 3609 Percival Road has been deferred.  And 05-80, case F, 13 Leaf Circle has been deferred, so if you’re here for any of those cases they may appear on subsequent agendas but they won’t be heard today.  The Board of Zoning Appeals is, operates as what they call a quasi court.  It’s not a court of law but it’s similar in how it operates to a court.  It’ll take testimony, hear evidence and it will render a decision.  Sometimes in a court you have to wait more than a day or so to get your decision, they may take a while.  You will actually get a decision from the Board of Zoning Appeals, in open session, here this afternoon.  The order of presentation, the applicant has up to 15 minutes.  You can take that full time, or any lesser amount that you want, to present your case.  You can do whatever is appropriate to present you case.  If you have to, a video presentation, handouts, whatever, that’s perfectly fine.  Those in opposition have three minutes each, up to three minutes each and then the applicant gets to come back for a up to five minutes of rebuttal.  So if you see the process, it’s applicant, then opposition, then applicant at the end; that comes back to the court like nature of the process.  The applicant bears the burden of proving why he or she should get the relief that they’re asking for, either a Special Exception or a Variance.  Those are the type cases that the Board is hearing this afternoon.  The, sometimes I’ll make the comment about having spoke persons, but we have a fairly small crowd today, so please, you know, take all the time that you need, that’s provided by the Board.  Those time periods, by the way, could be extended with questioning from the Board, so if you go over that period it’s, it’s not uncommon and it’s certainly allowed under the Board’s rules.  The effect of a Board’s decision, when the Board issues a decision you’ll have, what I call, either a conditional approval or denial.  Well what’s the condition?  Under the Rules of Procedure for the Board, a decision does not come final until the minutes from which that decision was rendered have been approved.  So, for example, in the August meeting of the Board, very likely, we will have the minutes from today’s meeting up for approval, then you’d have a final decision.  So it’s about a month delay.  The reason I mention that is, in the interim, if you take some action, you know, you come in, you want a 2’ foot variance so you can build a carport, it goes, encroaches  into your, your neighbor, or maybe the side yard setback for, by a couple feet and the Board says yeah that sounds like an okay thing and there’s no real opposition, you go ahead, you’ve got your variance.  Well, the decision doesn’t become final until the minutes have been approved.  So, if you go out that afternoon, call the contractor, get some concrete poured, spend some money; in the meantime, before the next hearing, your next door neighbor, who could have been, you know, out of the country on business on in the military, comes in and says, “Well, gee I didn’t know about this hearing, I don’t want this thing 2’ over into the setback”, and they come in, well that’s some new evidence, new testimony that the Board hasn’t heard before, they may move to reconsider the case.  And it’s kind of a, the upshot is, the decision is not final, if you take an action in reliance on a decision before the minutes have been approved, you’re basically doing that at your own risk; so just a little word to the wise there.  However, once the minutes have been approved, you do have a final decision of the Board, as far as the Board’s process is concerned.  However, someone could appeal that decision under State Law and they can do that under Title 6 of the South Carolina Code.  They don’t have an indefinite period of time to make that appeal, they have to file it within 30 days to the decision being mailed.  So, you know, six months down the road, you’re going to know, for sure, that your decision is final.  But, keep in mind those time periods, the minute approval process and the appeal process under State Law.  After that, you’ve got a final decision of the Board.  Are there any questions on the appeal process or the reconsiderations?  I think those are the most important things that I’ll touch upon.  Okay, very good.  The Board will consider, like I say, a, documents and evidence that you present.  Evidence that’s given under oath, or that’s attested to, in the form of, for example, an affidavit, will carry more weight than an un-sworn statement or un-sworn testimony.  Kind of basic there, but just keep in mind, they will look at pretty much whatever submissions you have for them.  In a moment I’ll swear everyone in as a group who’s going to testify in a case before the Board.  If you’re going to testify, you do need to be signed up on the sheet for that particular case.  If you haven’t signed up yet, it’s not to late to do that.  At the conclusion of my remarks we’ll ask you to come up front and sign up for your case; but whether you’re going to sign, on the sheet yet or not, I will swear you in in a moment.  The Board consists of seven Members; only five are here today, 4th of July holiday, we may have had a couple on vacation still, but that is a quorum.  Four people constitute a quorum, so they can conduct business.  If you’d like to wait for a full panel, you can certainly make that request when your case is called and the Board will entertain that request at that time.  The effect of a tie vote, it’s not likely they would have a tie vote since we have an odd number here today, but if you did have a tie vote, the case essentially is carried over until the next agenda of the Board.  That’s somewhat different than your standard parliamentary procedure where you have a decision failing for a lack of a majority.  The case is just carried over.  I’ll explain more about that if that occurs, but that the essences of a tie vote situation.  Couple of housekeeping notes, if you do have a cell phone or a pager, if you could just turn that to off or vibrate so we don’t pick it up on the recording system, we’d appreciate that.  Another question I get asked sometimes is, “Well, gee is it okay for me to get up and leave during the hearing?”  This is a public process, you can come and go as you like, we just ask that you do it quietly, head out and, outside if you need to.  If your case is far down on the agenda you may have some time to do that, although the Board will move straight through the cases.  The only time the Members will not be sitting where they are right now would be if they call a recess or if they go into Executive Session.  That’s something that’s provided for under the Freedom of Information Act.  For example, if they want to talk to their lawyer, if they want to talk to me or Staff about a legal matter, they can do that.  It’s kind of like if you talk to your own lawyer, that’s a private matter.  However, the Board can not take any action in Executive Session.  They can’t go back there and take a straw pole or decide a case, they have to just discuss a legal point and then come back in open session and take a vote, and that’s the Executive Session process.  Is, anyone have any questions about anything I covered at this point?  Okay very good.  If not, if you are going to speak to a case, whether you’ve signed up or not, please at this time stand and raise your right hand, I will swear everyone in as a group.  Do you swear or affirm the testimony you shall give, shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God?  

AUDIENCE:  I do.

MR. FARRAR:  Please be seated.  Thank you very much.  Somewhat of an honor system on that, but if anyone said anything other than “yes” or “I do”, please let me know.  Otherwise we are considered sworn as a group and I turn it back to the Chairman at this time, thank you.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Thank you.  Any matters by any Members of the Board before we start any cases?  


MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman, I’d like to make, get clarification on the new Ordinance, make sure we all in compliance with the new Ordinance as to how we act on old cases.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Are you awake?


MR. PRICE:  I’m sorry, discussing another -


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Tolbert’s question was the same one I asked you earlier, the effect of the new Ordinance and the effective date that the Board will use it in consideration of applications.


MR. FARRAR:  Yeah, you’ve got applications and fees that have been collected, with the understanding that the old Code was in place, so you would be proceeding under the old Code.  However, there is also something known as the Pending Ordinance Doctrine and if you have some, if you have some application that would be permissible on June 30th but, you know, so offends the spirit and intent of the Ordinance that comes into effect July 1st, you can adopt the Pending Ordinance Doctrine for the purpose of your decision, but, you know, it is somewhat a murky area and you need to consider, you need to consider, certainly, the Code that was in place at the time the application came in, but you may also consider things that are in the new Code, but you need to explain, you know, what you’re basing your decision on so the Record is clear.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well, the effect date of the new Code is the first of July, isn’t that correct?


MR. FARRAR:  That’s correct, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  So applications, or cases that we consider next month, well they could have still been filed in June, I guess, or in the cases that are deferred, would have been filed prior to the effective date of the new Ordinance.  So, for all intents and purposes it will be September, almost, before everything ought to be under the new Land Development Code.


MR. FARRAR:  Yeah, I mean, I think you are going to have a period of transition, where the cases that are in the pipeline, they’re going to be an extra consideration about something that was permissible under the old Code and whether or not it’s carried into the new Code.  I mean, the differences might not make much difference to your decision, but, if you’re, for example, going to base an approval or denial in something that’s in the new Code, you know, you need to state that for the Record so the applicant can know, you know, what set of rules they are playing under for that case.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Certainly, thanks.  Does that answer your question?


MR. TOLBERT:  Yeah, but I had one more.  I’m not trying to make it complicated, but if you have a reconsideration, how would that fall in, is that still under the old rules or would it be adopted under the new Ordinance.


MR. FARRAR:  Yeah, I mean, you’re going to have a case, as I say is in the pipeline, so when the application came in, that’s, those are the set of rules that the person filed under, even though they may have know the new Code was coming along, they still got their application in before the new Code took effect.  The reconsideration is a part of that case, you’d still, and I don’t know if the reconsideration rules have changed substantially that, you know, you’re basically looking for new evidence, something that wasn’t presented; so, yeah.


MR. TOLBERT:  Yeah, well that would be my question then that the new evidence would be under the new ordinance if any of it came into effects, so then we would be based, judging on that new ordinance that - on or after accepted.


MR. FARRAR:  Well, it would still be the Code that was in place at the time the application came in.


MR. TOLBERT:  Alright, that’s all.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions?  


MS. PERKINS:  Yeah I have one.  So you’re saying, like usually the application is given to us so we would look at the date the applicant filed and make somewhat of a determination?


MR. FARRAR:  Yeah, yeah, at this time it might be appropriate to go into Executive Session.  Is there a motion, can we get a motion for that?


MS. PERKINS:  So moved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Go into Executive Session.


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to go into Executive Session.

[Executive Session]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a motion to go back into open session?


MR. BRANHAM:  So moved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MS. DORSEY:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  All in favor. 

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, we’re back in open session.  Mr. Price, first case.

CASE NO. 05-78 SE:


MR. PRICE:  First case is Item B, Case 05-74 Special Exception.  The applicant is Eugene Resch.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Appeals to grant a Special Exception to reduce the number of required parking spaces in an M-1 zoned district.  The applicant proposes to construct a 41,670 square foot warehouse and a 17,355 foot, square foot office.  The proposed construction will require 128 parking spaces.  In this case, the Applicant is - the reduction in the parking is going to come from the warehouse portion.  The office, the required parking for the office will not be reduced in any way. It’s just for the warehouse.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay, I have Mr. Zanders signed up.


MR. ZANDERS:  Yes, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Zanders, I’ve noticed that a Mr. Resch is the applicant.  I take it that ya’ll are partners in the same firm, is that correct?


MR. ZANDERS:  Yes Sir, Ferguson did submit a letter -


MR. PRICE:  Yes.


MR. ZANDERS:  - approving my appearance here.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.


MR. PRICE:  We do have that.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Would you explain to the Board what it is you’d like to do and why please?

TESTIMONY OF MR. TED ZANDERS:


MR. ZANDERS:  Yes, sir.  I’m the head of the Architectural Department for Carlisle Associates, Gene Resch heads up the Civil Engineering group there.  What we want to do is reduce the parking to better reflect the actual use of the building.  The zoning regulations cover quite a broad range of conditions under the classification of warehouse use.  You can have anything from a pick and sort type of warehouse where you’ve got a lot of folks pulling warehouse items off of racking systems and trying to distribute them to a large number of trucks or vehicles or other means of transportation.  In this case we don’t have that type of situation.  We expect there to be only 12 people working in the warehouse.  This is not a retail operation, it’s a wholesaling operation, so there are fewer vehicles per day and less traffic to and from the building.  So, the Code would require us to allow for 70 individuals in the warehouse and since we only have 12 we’d like a reduction.  The 75% reduction, I believe, gets us down to 12, 15 individuals and so that’s still above the requirements, excuse me, it gets us down to 18 individuals in the warehouse, which is still six more than we anticipate being employed there.  Initially we are retaining more parking than would be required under this Special Exception.  With the Special Exception we’d be, have, we’d have 76 parking spaces on site required and we’ll be providing 84 spaces on site.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And you statement is that 12 people is the maximum number you’d have at any given time in the warehouse?


MR. ZANDERS:  Yes, sir, that’s what’s anticipated by Ferguson.  They’re a regional warehouse distributor of electrical and mechanical parts and based on their experience at other locations, up and down the east coast, this location they project to have 12 people maximum working in the warehouse.


MS. DORSEY:  You’re not asking for a reduction for the office part right, just the warehouse part?


MR. ZANDERS:  Yes, ma’am.


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.



MR. ZANDERS:  The requirements under the Code for the office would remain in effect. 


MS. DORSEY:  Alright.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions by members of the Board? Alright, thank you Mr. Zanders.


MR. ZANDERS:  You’re welcome.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  There’s no one else signed up either in favor of or in opposition of to this request.  The Chair will entertain discussion, Board members.


MS. DORSEY:  They’d still have considerably more spaces with the reduction if their employee base increased, they’d still have a lot more spaces.  I don’t think it’s unreasonable.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well and we’ve found in the past that the Zoning Ordinance may be somewhat out of touch with current conditions, in terms of parking.  I think it’s not an unusual request.  Any further discussion?  Hearing none, the Chair will entertain a motion.


MR. BRANHAM:  Mr. Chairman I’d like to make a motion that Special Exception 05 74 be approved as stated.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MS. DORSEY:  Second


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to approve the requested Special Exception.  All in favor indicate by raising their hand. 

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, Mr. Zanders you have your request.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch with you.

CASE NO. 05-78 SE:


MR. PRICE:  The next item is Item D.  The applicant is Jonathan Yates.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a Special Exception to permit the construction of a communication tower in a RU district, it’s rural.  The parcel is a 15.44 acre tract.  It has, from Staff’s observations, it has two residential structures but a majority of the parcel is an undeveloped and wooded.  The applicant proposes to erect a 250’ lattice tower within a 6,400 square foot leased compound.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Yates, our good fortune never ceases.  [Laughter]

TESTIMONY OF MR. JONATHAN YATES:


MR. YATES:  Mr. Chairman, Jonathan Yates, 151 Meeting Street, Charleston, for the, on behalf of Cingular Wireless.  Thank you very much.  We are here today on two applications, which were part of the sites that we’d previously reviewed with the Board on our plans for ’05 and ’06.  The first one we’ll talk about very briefly and answer any questions is this site; we call it the Starling property.  It is located right off of Screaming Eagle Road.  Everything on the other side of the road, of course, is Fort Jackson.  The Starling Property, we’re on one tract there.  Mrs. Starling just passed away in December and the entire 109 acres has been divided up between her five children.  We’re actually on the property where Ms. Starling resided.  The two residences that were shown in the photos were here former residence, which her son, our Landlord, Jerry Lee Starling, is renovating for his own use and behind her residence is a modular home in which Jerry’s oldest son presently resides.  The Starling property is actually interesting.  They acquired this in ’46, they actually had a tract inside of the Fort.  They were condemned and moved over here to make way for Fort Jackson.  The purpose of this site is Cingular wants to connect to two existing facilities already in place.  The goal of this site, these sites are respectably 275’ and 270’, going along I-20.  Our purpose here was to make the I-20 connection and also go in to get the back part of the Base.  We have just concluded, Mr. O’Dell who is with me as my colleague today, has just concluded construction in the Base where on the Fort we’re actually doing three poles on the Fort to cover the Fort.  This will cover I-20 and cover into the Fort.  What attracted us to this property, again was the size of the surrounding, the total of 109 acres surrounding us.  If you look at this property, as you see, we come in through a main 50’ access easement, which is used to access the other properties.  You see the Starling house in the back of the photo.  They raise goats on this property, so we have the goat pasture in the front facing Screaming Eagle and then we get into a pretty dense tree cover that they allowed us to place the facility in.  Very quickly, just to show you a little bit about out due diligence – we’ll go that one last - before you got it, before we get into the ordinance.  At 250’, this requires review by the FAA, which we presented.  The closest landing strip was H-1 on the Fort, the helicopter zone and we were approved.  The FAA reviewed it and we were approved by the FAA.  In addition, presented to South Carolina SCHPO and we were successful with SCHPO in getting their no effect letter from South Carolina SCHPO.  And also we presented this to USF&W and we’re clean with USF&W.  Going on to the ordinance.  And as you know we have a, we have a total of the first requirements then we have a set of three.  We go through the first eight and then we go onto to the other two, but we will move quickly.  First question, was there anything else we can use?  Again, on behalf of Cingular and we’ve discussed this many times, if there was anything else we could have used we would’ve.  This is a fill-in site, we do want to toot our horn as much as we can when we can.  The sites we’re handing off to are at 270 at 275, respectfully [sic].  Our design people felt that they could still make this connection with what we’re doing on the Fort, they could make the I-20 connection and cover Screaming Eagle by getting this down to 250.  So, again, we went for the least we could ask for.  In terms of a setback, your Ordinance requires a height of a tower, in this case 250, to any residential structure.  We are actually, if you, from our site plan, we are setback at least 290 from all sides and we’re setback all most 1,500, 1,600 front, from the front, so we’re well in excess of this requirement.  Illumination, we discussed illumination, we are going to be illuminated.  Cingular will offer, again on this site, our flash-tech system not the standard system.  We’ve discussed the flash-tech before, but, in a nutshell, what the flash-tech does that is different; during the day you have white at night we go to the red, with their deflection device built in, at 10 degrees below the horizon, we only get 1% of output.  As it’s boiled down for me, the technical explanation is 2,000 candelas go down to 25.  The explanation, which I could understand, is, off of the Starling property, somewhere between a 40 and a 60-watt patio bulb is the only effect.  So that is the illumination package they we will part of the condition of our approval.  Going down to the fence, the Code requires 7’ of fencing.  We actually are proposing 7’ of our standard fence with another foot of anti-climbing device, three strands of barb wire, above, so we’ll do a total of 8’ to come well within side the Code.  Landscaping; again, we’re going to take it a little step further.  We’re going into a fairly heavily treed site.  We’re going to clear out just what we need for our 20’ access and our 60 x 40 work area but we’re going to come back in, along the fence line, we’re gonna run our 6’ Leyland Cypress, space 5’ on center, the whole way around the fence line just to give an additional buffer between our fence and the existing vegetation.  We agreed to the item contained in number 6, no signage will be attached.  Under your Code we cannot exceed 300’, we’re actually coming in at 250 or about 50’ less than allowed by Code.  And, number 8, we would make as a condition of any approval, that if in fact this is discontinued, the use of this tower for 120 days, we will remove it.  Going on now, those are the general requirements for all towers and - yeah these are good, sorry.  Richland County requires after you go through the general, they have what we call the tower specific Special Exception requirements.  Number 1, do we endanger health and safety?  Absolutely not, what we’ve found, and the evidence is in, that we’ll actually enhance health and safety, not only along I-20 but along Screaming Eagle and as you go into the Fort.  Number 2, will we detract from the aesthetics and neighborhood character?  We feel that we will not.  We were able to, versus putting this closer to the front, which the Code would allowed us, in the goat pasture, we moved the site back into the trees.  This is a rural part of Richland County.  You have the Fort across the street and we’re just down the road from the infamous Waste Management facility.  So we felt in terms of location, we found the tree cover we needed and were able to cover both I-20 and connect to the existing sites inside the Fort.  Are we necessary to provide a service?  We feel clearly that we are with the use of wireless, not only phone but the other wireless devices to come.  Presently we have a pretty decent void, not only along I-20, but particularly along Screaming Eagle and the surrounding area, so we hope to fill that void with this facility.  Underlying zoning setbacks, we’re in the RU, that requires 40 front feet, 50 rear and 20 on the sides.  In all cases we meet all the setbacks by at least a factor of seven.  Again the Starling’s, versus putting it up front, which would have been fine by us, they allowed us to go back into the trees and we can mask it from the trees.  Have we attempted to co-locate?  Yes, we would hope to co-locate, there was nothing available in the area or we would’ve used it.  Finally we must review the Richland County criteria for all Special Exceptions.  Traffic impact; Mr. O’Dell’s crew will take about 30 days, if approved, to build this site out.  After that eight to 10 times a year in a small SUV, we’ll access the property for minor adjustments.  So, in terms of traffic impact, we create, after build-out, less, less than a 150 [sic] trips a year.  So we, we, it’s a very low traffic impact.  Vehicle and pedestrian safety, it’s been proven that wireless actually enhances vehicle and pedestrian safety.  Impact of noise, lights, fumes or obstruction of air flow, will have not off site noise, order or fumes.  We will be lit but, again, we make as a condition of our approval that we’ll use and enhances lighting package, the day white, night red that off site will be no more than a 60-watt patio bulb at night.  So we will incorporate that into our approval, an enhanced lighting package.  Adverse impact on the aesthetic character of the environs, again, to set the pace, we’re on Screaming Eagle, we’re just down the road from Waste Management, we’re across from the Fort.  Our property owner now has 1/5 of the property, as it’s been divided up between the siblings.  We are actually the center piece of the property.  The way that the property is divided into five almost equal parts, we’re sort of in the center surrounded by the other siblings and we’re back in the trees.  Orientation, spacing, improvements or buildings; the only improvement we will have is the tower itself.  Cingular does not propose a shelter on this site, we’ll simply be using pads and, again, all of that will be enclosed in a 60 x 40 fence and we’ll come back and do the Leyland Cypress surrounding the fence.   We’re here for any and all questions.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Questions by Members of the Board?  No questions, thank you Mr. Yates.  Mr. O’Dell you’re also signed up.  Are you just shanghaied to hold up signs, or – okay.  I have one person signed up in opposition, Ms. Bush.

TESTIMONY OF MRS. EVELYN BUSH:


MRS. BUSH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Board.  Evelyn Bush, 7309 Venus Road.  And I was looking through some papers and I was up here a year ago and, in July.  And that my concerns are exactly the same thing and there are mainly two, and that’s the lack of knowledge of the general public when you have the mask of towers and so forth and so on.  And also the one that really bothers me, is the 1996 Telecommunications, I’ve got written down, Reform Act that stated that the local jurisdiction cannot rule out a cell tower based on health.  This law took away local control, any questions, with any questions of health.  And that with the world moving so fast, with everything in the line of the cellular, wireless, satellites, everything moving so fast, it seems to me that our government is remiss when it does not bring their cellular phones, wireless information up to date and to consider the public concerns, that, should be, well it’s not the public concerns because the public doesn’t really know about it, I don’t think.  But I just wanted to get up here again today and this is about the same thing that I said last year, that it, to me it just doesn’t seem right.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any questions for Mrs. Bush by Members of the Board?  Alright, thank you, ma’am.  I have no one else signed up.  Mr. Yates, do you care for any rebuttal.


MR. YATES:  We’re just here for any questions.  The only thing I would say, just as an answer to Mrs. Bush, we found, and I think the Board has found, over the past couple of years, dealing with this thing, back to when Mr. Branham’s time on an earlier Board, I feel the signage is effective.  When we have an issue with a facility, that signage, it, the word gets out and the word gets out quickly, calls start coming into Geo and his folks and on a lot of earlier sites, when we were in more densely populated areas, I think that some of this Board can remember, we had, when the room was packed.  So, as to notice, we were following all the County requirements, but in my opinion what I hope we’re doing, when no one shows up, we’ve found a good site, cause I can assure you in the not to distant past, in fact December, we had a pretty good turn out, along Monticello Road and I think the signage works.  It’s posted prominently, it makes it clear what’s going on and I would, with all great respect, disagree with Ms. Bush.  When there’s a concern about a tower in a neighborhood, that sign is very, it’s a beacon and we hear about it.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any discussion by Members of the Board?


MS. DORSEY:  I’d like to basically repeat what Mr. Yates said.  I think Staff does everything that they’re required to do by Richland County, to inform the public of when and where the towers are going up.  So I, I find in impossible to fault the county and its Staff on that.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well, I’m confident that, also, that the Staff does post it as required and it is published in a newspaper, general publication and that’s what’s required by the Zoning Ordinance.  So, there may be individuals who don’t feel that that’s adequate and I understand that.


MS. DORSEY:  Yes.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  But I think Staff is doing what they’re required to do as a matter of Ordinance.  Any further discussion by Members of the Board?  Hearing none, the Chair will entertain a motion.


MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman, I make a motion that 05-78 be approved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  There’s a motion in the effect to approve Special Exception 05-78.  Is there a second?


MS. DORSEY:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to approve Special Exception 05-78.  All of those in favor of the motion signify by raising their hand.  None opposed.

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Yates you have your request.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch.  Mr. Price, the next case please.

CASE NO. 05-79 SE:


MR. PRICE:  Next item is Item E and it’s case 05-79 Special Exception.  The applicant is Jonathan Yates.  The location is on, along Garners Ferry Road.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a Special Exception to permit the construction of a communication tower in a RU district.  The parcel is undeveloped and heavily wooded.  The applicant proposes to erect a 150’ monopole tower within a 10,000 square foot leased compound.  The parcel size is about 13.33 acres.  Presently, as stated is presently undeveloped.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Yates?  I would think Cingular ought to be able to give you your own microphone just to bring with you.  [Laughter]


MR. TOLBERT:  I was just fixing to ask the same thing.

TESTIMONY OF MR. JONATHAN YATES:


MR. YATES:  I have to beg them for a phone.  [Laughter]  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Again for the Record, Jonathan Yates, 151 Meeting Street, Charleston, South Carolina on behalf of Cingular.  This is our second site today and, other than a site where our landlord has come missing, that we’re working with the county on, the last you’ll see of us for a little while.  So, our property owner, Ms. Billie Arrant is with us today, along with her daughter.  We thank her for showing up.  This piece of property is located along Garners Ferry.  It’s just at the intersection where Old Eastover comes off of Garners Ferry, right across from an old gas stations there.  And, again, our purpose here, we had two existing sites along Garners Ferry, to the west and east of this.  We were trying to connect up to both of them and Cingular reviewed it and we were able to get by, going a 150’, in this case.  And the advantage here, 150’ allowed us to got with a monopole, which we like to do if we can.  We went to the lower silhouette of the monopole, which we can effectively do under 200’ and so we did it.  We, if you follow this stretch again, you’re in Eastover, it’s right at the break of Old Eastover.  This tower will be illuminate because of the proximity of McEntire, cause of air, the McEntire A&G, we will illuminate but we are also offering on this one our upscale illumination package.  Brad, let’s go into the due diligence that we did.  We were, again, approved for the USF&W and, just as a quick aside, I know we flash these up real quickly.  What the USF&W ask us is two things; do we violate the Migratory Bird Treaty Act?  They’re concerned if a structure is so big the migratory birds might be attracted to the lights or hit it and they found we are in compliance with that.  And then under the ESA or Endangered Species Act, what the USF&W, they look at the report from our Wildlife and Environmental Specialist to make sure there’s no flora or fauna in area that we could be affecting by this facility.  Again, we reviewed it by South Carolina SCHPO, and as a review, what South Carolina SCHPO does, they take a look on the state maps and the county maps, are there any historical, registered properties, or eligible properties, or property designated by Richland County, as historic to Richland County.  They also look, are there any archeological sites there or any Indian mounds or burial grounds; that is their review, which the best you can get from them, usually we get a no adverse effect letter.  The highest recommendation they can give you, which we received on this one, is no effect.  Okay and we’ll go into the Ordinance. Again, were there any alternatives?  Our goal here was to connect to two existing sites.  We had nothing to work with, but again, we designed our system as lean as possible in order to allow us not to exceed the height in the neighborhood and we’re able to come up with 150 to make our connections to the sites to the west and the east, along Garners Ferry and this will complete our coverage there for both Garners Ferry, Eastover and going down Old Eastover.  When we adjoin a residential district or inhabited residence we have to be 150’ back, we met that by a great margin on all sides.  And presently this property, this piece of property was bought by the Arrant’s in 1999.  It is planted pines, they have no present use of the property or any present plans of what they plan to do with their property.  So, we are going to be the only facility, what they allowed us to do is to cut back through the pine forest, our access road, and we’ll do our 60 x 40 surrounded by the pines.  Illumination, we’ve discussed this before, but just to re-review it, we will use, there are three systems available, they’re almost identical, the vendors are Flash Tech, Honeywell and TRW.  Flash Tech gives us the best promotional piece, but it’s basically the same system.  The key, again, to this system, the light is aimed upward with deflection devices so it forms, performs this air navigation function, without having the flow to the ground.  But the most important part about this system is at night it switches to that red.  Questions have been asked before and I’d like to address it now, what happens if it doesn’t switch?  All three of those companies, Honeywell, Flash and TRW, run, what we call a NOC center or a Nationals Operation Center.  If for, they have a computer in there that if it doesn’t turn, they alert us, they alert their people and within a half hour we have a crew out there to find out why it didn’t switch to red and get it switched over.  If we ever have a subsequent complaint, it’s it didn’t switch to red a night.  But we’ve been able to solve that by the use of the NOC center.  Landscaping, again, if you look, and you can see from the photos, there is nothing on the property.  It’s just planted pines that have grown up.  We will clear out our 20’ access.  We will then clear our tower area and we will still come back, around our 60 x 40 fence line, and, just as additional insurance, we will plant the Leyland Cypress, 6’ at time of planting, 5’ on center, to give that extra, little buffer of coverage.  Going on down, no signage, absolutely, we’ll not have any advertising signage of any sort on the communications tower.  The Ordinance allows us in this area, in the RU district, up to 300’.  We were able, by doing our homework and making the best possible connection, to come in at half that what we’re allowed, or 150’.  And again, number 8, we would make as a condition of our approval that if for some reason use is discontinued we will remove the facility.  Going to the Richland County Tower Special Exception Requirements, do we endanger health and safety off residence, employees or travelers?  Again, no.  Towers, particularly this design, the lattice and, in this case, the monopole design we’ve found them to be extremely safe.  We’ve had the peak test of winds, mainly in the coastal areas of Florida, the North Carolina Coast and Cingular Wireless has experienced no failure of one of these facilities.  In fact, we’re usually the last thing left standing and our phones work.  Number 2 is a real important question, will we substantially detract from the aesthetics and neighborhood character?  Absolutely not, we had a good piece of property to work with, we’re about 13.44 acres, completely planted in pines.  We were able to setback into the property and we will carve out just what we need.  We’ll landscape around what we use and, to be honest, if you travel that trek, particularly at 150’, we feel that this is, as much as we can make a tower virtually invisible.  This will have a very limited visibility at best.  Do we meet the underlying zoning setbacks?  Again, we are in the RU district, 40 front, 50 rear 20 sides and we exceeded them all by an incredible factor.  Is there anything within 1,000’, another tower?  No there isn’t, if there was we’d be on it right now.  Have we attempted to co-locate?  Yeah, we not only look for other towers, we look for water tanks, they typically come out between 150 and 180’, so we can go on top, if they’re there.  Tall buildings, we just don’t have tall buildings on unincorporated Richland County.  If they were there, we’d use them.  As all Special Exceptions in Richland County, traffic impact, we talked on this before, just briefly.  It will be the same 30-day build-out period, then Mr. O’Dell’s maintenance people will need to come, on average for a site like this, we average, eight to 10 times a year, the maximum number of visits.  Vehicle and pedestrian safety, we don’t feel there are a lot of pedestrians.  We’re not seeing a lot of pedestrian’s along Garners Ferry but there is very good vehicle traffic and the results are in from law enforcement agents, through out the country, that we aid vehicle safety.  Potential of impact and noise, noise, lights fumes, or obstruction of airflow?  Again, off site, no noise, lights, odor or fume.  The lights, again, what we will do, is at night it goes to a red, 2,000 candelas are taken down to 25 candelas.  The effect off site, somewhere between a 40 and a 60-watt patio bulb left on.  Adverse impact on the aesthetic character of the environs and including the possible need for screening from view, we feel that we’ve completely screened this site; we’re going into the planted pines.  We’re in off the road and then we’re coming back in and putting in our own landscaping.  We lease 100 x 100.  We clear about 80 x 80, to about 70 x 70 and inside of that we put our fence.  So what we’ll do is we’ll ring the fence with the Leyland Cypress.  Why do we pick them?  In this climate they grow quickly and they grow thick.  They’re the fastest grower we’ve found, also they give us the most foliage, so that’s why they’re selected.  Again on this site, Cingular is not proposing a shelter building.  We do use shelter buildings in other markets.  We’re not presently using them in Richland County.  Here will simply do out typical 10 x 15 foot pad.  We will put our equipment, which is just some cabinetry, about 6’ tall on the pad and that is it, so there will be no buildings.  What we look to do here, on Ms. Arrant’s property, which we’ve looked on all the others, we’ve gone into the property, we’ve used the existing vegetation and - to make this thing the least visible possible.  Again, the advantage to this facility for, in the unincorporated area is relatively short.  We’re coming in at only 150’ and it is a monopole design, which is our cleanest silhouette.  Just so, to give you the difference between the two we’ve looked at today; monopoles, structurally, we get up to about 200 with a monopole, maybe 205.  After that, for structural reasons, we have to go to the other two designs.  We do not have a vendor presently who can take a monopole up to 220, 240, 250, so we’re able to, we’re able to use them when less height is required.  What we like about the monopole is that very thin silhouette; not very dissimilar to a pylon sign you’d see in front of Wal-Mart or a Hardee’s.  We’re here for any questions. 


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any questions by Members of the Board for Mr. Yates?  Ms. Arrant did you have anything you wanted to add?  Ms. Beliese?  Mr. O’Dell?  Alright.  We have one person signed up in opposition, Ms. Bush. Go ahead, ma’am, I’m sorry.

TESTIMONY OF MS. EVELYN BUSH:


MS. BUSH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  It would have helped me if I could have heard the discussion that was, you had, the Board had at the end of the last case and it also would’ve helped me if my worthy opponent had spoke in English, but he uses so many alphabets, letters of the alphabet, it is hard for somebody like me.  I’m sure ya’ll understand, I’m sure he understands and the people who work with it do, but this is just another point that I’ve been trying to make.  An average person can’t manage it.  But I still think that the rules are set so that the general public doesn’t have a chance in this and that with Cingular, a multi-billion dollar company, can just do anything they want to and anybody else is just plain – well anyway.  That, but I still say that I hope that somebody is going to look out for the public’s health because it hasn’t been proven that this system will not hurt anybody or anything and especially when they can’t see it, because so much in here is made, is built so that it’s out of sight and out of mind.  So that, it’s nothing more that I can say except that just one more time I want to say that I hope somebody is going to look out for the public health and I, it, I’m sure the Staff does what’s required of them.  But what I’m trying to say, that I don’t think that the, enough is required because it, it’s just the times we live in I guess.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Bush, for your benefit the, in a nutshell, the comments of the Board were that the requirements in the Ordinance, in terms of notification of the public were being followed by the Staff and that, I think I’m safe in saying that the Board felt that that was adequate notification and we couldn’t require anything further of the Staff than what the Ordinance requires.


MS. BUSH:  I understand that, I understand, I understand that.  That’s part of my objection that I just can’t seem to get in words.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, thank you.  Any questions for Ms. Bush?  Alright, thank you, ma’am.  Mr. Yates, any matters in rebuttal?


MR. YATES:  No, Mr. Chairman.  And one thing too and I’ll offer to Ms. Bush again at the conclusion of this meeting, she has and we don’t belittle the role she’s taken.  She’s taken a very active role and, you know, it’s a hot day out there, better things to do.  For any proposals that we have to go forward, and I will make sure I give her my phone numbers again, we always will be available prior to hearing or after hearing, to go through them in more detail with her and we’ll, we’ll, I’ll do a better job of that, of getting my numbers to her, because we don’t’ belittle her passion and what she feels.  What we do want to say is, and we can’t speak for the whole industry, we try to do the best job we can under the guidelines and if more time is taken to help work through our projects with her, we’ll give it, we’ll give it to her.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, thank you, Mr. Yates.  I have not other person signed up, either in favor of or opposition.  The Chair will entertain a discussion by the Board, any discussion?  Hearing none, the Chair will entertain a motion.


MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chair, I move that 05-79 Special Exception be approved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to approve the Special Exception request, 05-79.  All in favor indicate by raising your hand.

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  None in opposition.  Mr. Yates your request is approved.   The Zoning Administrator will be in touch with you.


MR. YATES:  Thank ya’ll very much.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Price, next case please.

CASE NO. 05-81 V:


MR. PRICE:  Next item is Item G, Case 05-81 Variance . The applicant is Rex L. Casterline.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a Variance to encroach into the required front yard setbacks in a PUD, Planned Unit Development zoned district.  The location is 325 Laurel Rise Lane.  Once again the existing zoning is a PUD.  The parcel is .24 acres and the existing land use is residential.  The proposed structure will encroach into the required front yard setback by 2’.  It’s required to have 25’ from the front property line, it’s actually 23 on a portion of it.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, are you Mrs. Catalinado?

TESTIMONY OF MS. LISA CATALINADO:


MS. CATALINADO:  Lisa Cattalano, I’m with Harvey, Casterline & Fellini.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, I’m sorry?


MS. CATALINADO:  I’m here with Harvey, Casterline & Fellini.  I’m on behalf of Rex Casterline and Essex Homes, 300 Long Pointe Lane, Columbia, South Carolina.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, ma’am, would you tell the Board what it is you want and why you want it.


MS. CATALINADO:  Sure, thank you Mr. Chairman and the Board.  I’m here today asking for a 2’ Variance for the house that the garage, at the front of the house, encroaches over the front minimum building setback line by 2’.  The front minimum building setback line is 25’.  This house was contracted by Janis and James Campbell, with Essex Homes, to purchase this property.  Mr. Campbell is active military currently stationed in Germany and he’s been building this house through Essex in contemplation of his return home to the United States and he is now waiting final approval so that he can move home, move back to the United States.  The reason that this, this was a mistake that was made that Essex Homes regrets, but the reason that this mistake happened, the original house plans did not include a 3’ extension to the garage.  After the original house plans were done, Mr. Campbell requested that a 3’ extension to the garage be made.  This was not caught by the surveyor, who went out to do the site plans.  The superintendent of the, of Essex Homes did realize that this was not reflected on the site plans.  However, to compound this problem, when the graters came out, they knocked down the front stakes.  So when the superintendent went back out, he decided to measure from the back stakes and that caused the garage to set over, he mis-measured, so that caused the garage to set over the front setback line by 2’.  As I said, Essex regrets that this mistake happened and so they’ve taken steps to ensure that this does not happen again in the future.  And one of the things that they’ve done is hired a construction expert from another company to their company and they’ve had training sessions with the superintendents that build the houses and different Essex employees.  Also, they have been instructed, the person preparing the site plans have been instructed to review the contract to make sure that no changes that effect the size of the house, are prepared so that the site plan actually matches the contract changes.  And if there are any contract changes that aren’t caught, they’ve been instructed to re-prepare the site plan to show that revision.  Also, the superintendents have been instructed to conduct field measurements to the front of the footings before any work to the foundation is done.  The hardship is going to be primarily to the Campbell’s, who again, are waiting to return home, to the United States.  One, if the house does have to be cut where the garage is, there’s going to have to be a patch job done and it’s going to be difficult, at this stage, to match the mortar and the brick.  Also, it will reduce the appraised value of the property.  This is the dream home of the Campbell’s, just waiting to come back and, as I said, any, if this, if this is not approved, it would delay their return home from the United States, or to the United States.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, any questions for Mrs. Catalinado?  Is that, did I pronounce that right?


MS. CATALINADO:  That’s correct.  Thank you, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  By Members of the Board.


MR. TOLBERT:  How far along were you with the construction of the garage when you realized this, or you had it already completed before you realized it?


MS. CATALINADO:  The home had already been completed.  Once the house was completed, everybody assumed that it was going to be ready to go to closing and a final survey was ordered at that time.  And so the problem was not caught until a final survey was done on the property.


MR. TOLBERT:  Is that you all’s normal practice, to do it after or before?


MS. CATALINADO:  It’s, well it’s common practice to do a site plan before, which Essex did do.  However the surveyor did not catch the changes to the contract that included the 3’ extension.  To follow-up on that original site plan, a final survey was done, which is usually done right before the final closing and that’s what was done in this case also.  Actually it is, it is not required practice that a final survey been done, to have been done, but the Campbell’s requested that a final survey been done and, in fact, that was done and that’s when the problem was caught.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And your – I’m sorry go ahead.


MS. DORSEY:  On the, on the Exhibit A of the, of the variance appeal, it states some 5’, and the plot plan indicates the house was scheduled to be built behind the front minimum building setback limit of 25.0’ and inside the rear minimum of building setback as the lot survey indicates, so it’s possible.  However, when the house was actually built, the house was built such that the garage for the dwelling exceeded the front minimum building setback.  Well, how did it happen if the plot plan -


MS. CATALINADO:  Because the plot plan did not, it, the plot plan actually showed that the house was going to sit within those setback lines.  The measurements were done for the positioning of the house and when those positioning stakes were done, it actually showed the house sitting behind the setback line and the reason the problem was caused is because when that surveyor did that plot plan, he did not account for that 3’ extension in the garage.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  So you’re saying, Mr. Whetstone missed that when he did the original survey?


MS. CATALINADO:  No not, Mr. Whetstone did not do the original survey, it was actually done by Belter and Associates.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.


MS. CATALINADO:  So the final survey, that’s when it was caught, it was actually done by a different surveyor.


MR. TOLBERT:  In part of your testimony, did you not say that the owner wanted the 3’ extension?


MS. CATALINADO:  Correct, the owner wanted the 3’ extension to the property, or to the garage, but the original house plan did not account for a 3’ extension to the garage.  It was after the contract, after the original contract had been done and the original house plans had been done, that the purchaser wanted a 3’ extension.  That was supposed to have been done, that was supposed to have been accounted for when the surveyor went out and did the site plan, but he didn’t catch the contract change at that time.


MR. TOLBERT:  Wouldn’t it be a common practice though, if the new owner want a 3’ extension, for you all to re-measure to make sure that you’re still in compliance?


MS. CATALINADO:  Yes and that was a mistake that was made by Essex Homes.  What should have been done is that the surveyor should have gone back out and re-done an entire site plan and instead they thought that would be safe to measure from the back stakes and instead of causing a 3’ difference, he still messed up by 2’; so the house still does encroach, or the garage portion of the house encroaches by 2’ over that front minimum building setback line.


MS. PERKINS:  So what you’re really asking us is not for the Variance, but to allow, because you’ve already built the house and you have the 3’ on the lot.


MS. CATALINADO:  Correct.


MS. PERKINS:  So you aren’t -


MS. CATALINADO:  The house has already been built, so the Variance is requested to allow the house to exist as it currently is.  And again, Essex regrets any mistake that they’ve made and they’ve made steps to ensure that this does not happen again in the future.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And would you articulate for me again what you consider the hardship to be.


MS. CATALINADO:  The hardship is going to be primarily to the new purchasers, Mr. and Mrs. Campbell, who are waiting in Germany to come over, the delay in the time.  They’ve had items that are currently being stored, he’s active military.  The other hardship is in the appraised value in the property, if the property does have to be cut, in matching the mortar and the brick and that can cause a difference in the appraised value when they, when they go to resell the property.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions for Mrs. Catalinado?  Alright, thank you, ma’am.  There’s no one else signed up, either in favor of or in opposition of this request.  The Chair will entertain discussion.


MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman, I have a little bit of problem.  I heard two different testimonies.  I’m hearing Essex saying they were partially the problem, but then the owner, in her statement, said that he wanted an extension.  So I’m a little bit confused there as to the justification for -


MS. DORSEY:  Well I think, I think the owner, the way I understood it, the owner asked for an extension; at that point it was Essex responsibility to re-measure or re-survey, have a sure thought and that’s, that wasn’t done.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That was my understanding also.


MS. PERKINS:  And the hardship is not one that we can consider, from what I heard, and I could be incorrect; but she said that devaluation of the home and, which I’m sure it would happen, you know, if they patched it up.  But, and the other was, and I couldn’t quite understand the other, cause I might have heard it wrong, but they couldn’t come from Germany?


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I guess they’re in Germany awaiting completion of the house before they move into it and I think -


MS. PERKINS:  But I mean, I thought she was saying, I, okay, so you’re saying that they can come, they can leave Germany, that wasn’t her, my understanding.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No, I’m not saying that.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh, okay.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Hopefully she is, but I understood her to say that there would be a problem matching the mortar and the brick.  I find that a little hard to believe.   It’s a brick, made by some brick company and they make more than one batch of it and  you can mix mortar to match about anything that you need to match.  I’m not persuaded by that.  Any other comments by Members of the Board?  Hearing none, the Chair will entertain a motion.


MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chair, I’ll move that 05-81 for a Variance be denied on the grounds that this does not meet criteria required for a Variance.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to deny the requested Variance.  All in favor of the motion signify by raising your hand.  Opposed?

[Approved:  Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Opposed:  Branham; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Your request has been denied.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch with you.  Mr. Price, next case. 

CASE NO. 05-82 V:


MR. PRICE:  The next item it Item H, Case 05-82 Variance.  The applicant is Patricia Towery.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a Variance to encroach into the required rear yard setbacks in an RS-3.  This is cluster housing, that’s single-family residential zoned district.  The location is 10 Regal Court.  The existing zoning, as stated, is RS-3, .16 of an acre.  The subject property is vacant at this time and the proposed structure will encroach into required rear yard setbacks by 5.5’.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, I have, Patsy Towery, is that correct?

TESTIMONY OF MS. PATSY TOWERY:


MS. TOWERY:  Correct.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That’s correct.  Do you want to explain to the Board what it is you want and why?


MS. TOWERY:  Alright.  We’re requesting a Variance to encroach into the rear yard setback by 5 ½, and 5’ 5” inches on property zoned for a single-family residential home.  What happened, and the home that we want to build is the same size as the other homes.  We didn’t know, it’s an irregularly shaped lot, I’ll start off that way, and we did not know that this house would not fit on it until the builder went to string it out, to stake it out.  But because of the curb and the irregular shape, the house won’t fit unless we have this Variance.  And I do have the builder here to address any technical questions you might have – Todd Milky.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, any questions for Mrs. Towery? 

TESTIMONY OF MR. TODD MILKY:


MR. MILKY:  Do you need, do you need me to speak or anything?


MR. TOLBERT:  Well, I’m waiting for the hardship that she was about to tell me, I hope.


MR. MILKY:  I was just going to say it’s the last lot in phase 1 and phase 2 is not going to be open for a while and her house can’t go anywhere else.  And it’s the same size as all the rest of the houses and we did not, the developer, the engineers, are the ones, this is the only lot and it’s because it’s the last lot and it’s in the curve; no one was aware that this house would not fit on this lot.  I had already obtained the building permit and we were surveying the house on the lot, doing a pre-site plan and it wouldn’t fit any kind of way we turned it, it would not fit.  And so, then we went back to the engineers and actually laid the subdivision out and they were the ones that proposed this to get the house on there and it’s the only way it will go.  It’s a three bedroom house with minimum size bedrooms, the spare bedrooms are 12 x 12.  There’s no where to cut that little bit of room on the house and all we’re encroaching is a little triangle, because, you know, we’re getting right back in, do y’all have a plat?  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Yes, we do.


MR. MILKY:  We’re getting right back in to the setbacks, just in, you know, like 12’ and all we’re trying to do is push the house back to the corner, which still belongs to the subdivision, to maintain the 15’ off the road.  


MS. DORSEY:  Are the lots not laid out to fit the houses on?


MR. MILKY:  Every lot in the subdivision, every house has, this house has fit every lot but this one and it’s the last one and it’s on the end, it’s in a turn.  No one was aware it wouldn’t fit and the developer, I went straight to the developer, and it’s just the way the lines on that angle, all the rest of the lines were straight and he said it was just an oversight when they laid it out, that the length of the house will not go on the lot.


MS. DORSEY:  Can another house go on the lot?


MR. MILKY:  A smaller, two bedroom house could go on the lot.


MR. BRANHAM:  But didn’t you say that was a minimum, the house that she’s requesting is a minimum?


MR. MILKY:  That, the house - what we’ve been doing, is all the exterior lots, we’ve been putting the three bedroom houses on them and she has the last one and she’s been waiting a while to go, to build on it.  And when we got to her, no one was aware that it wouldn’t fit until we were there.  I mean, she’s on the, she’s at the end of the road, on the last lot.  And every house prior to that, all the houses are the same sizes as the one she’s building and all the neighbor, every neighbor on the street knows the situation, they’ve already met and they’re friends, they all want her as a neighbor, they’ve, everybody there is in favor of this, in the neighborhood.  It’s just, it was an oversight, it’s not going to hurt anything. 


MR. TOLBERT:  Normal procedure would mean that you would have an engineer, or somebody to draw this out to make sure.  At some point in that, when did you realize that it wasn’t fit?


MR. MILKY:  Well, we have, we have an engineer plat of the entire subdivision and the lots, that’s for engineers, we had an architect to draw our houses that would fit on the lots, cause I’m just assuming, after the 40th house, that this house is going to go on the lot.  So, I obtained a permit and then when my guys were surveying out the stakes, then the house won’t fit, it’s just the first time it’s happened.  But if you go back and look at the plat there’s not another lot in the entire subdivision that is shaped like this at the end of a street and it was something that the engineer just, the line just cut different, being at the end and the house just won’t quite, quite get on it.  And all the utilities are there, everything there; it’s ready to go.


MR. FARRAR:  Sir, could you just state your name for the record please?


MR. MILKY:  I’m Todd Milky with Milky Builders.


MR. FARRAR:  Thank you.


MS. PERKINS:  And it’s the shape, you’re saying, I heard you come out and say it, with the irregular shape of the lot.  Is, are there other things in the lot area?  You haven’t built yet, so I can appreciate that somewhat.


MR. MILKY:  Thank you.


MS. PERKINS:  Is that what you said, that it’s the shape of the -


MR. MILKY:  Right, every lot in there is pretty much a perfect rectangle, but what they did on this last lot, because the road is turning, it’s just a little irregular shape to it, you know, it’s got all this road frontage, on the front and the back doesn’t and every other lot is, you know, perfect rectangle and it was just an oversight that this house wouldn’t go on that lot.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I take it the shape of the lot is somewhat dictated by the storm drainage, what’s that on two sides of it?


MR. MILKY:  And  - sir?


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I take it that in part, the shape of the lot is a result of the storm drainage easements that are on the side and back, is that what you’re -


MR. MILKY:  That’s correct.


MS. DORSEY:  Is there anything about, because it is an irregularly shaped lot and it is beside storm drain easements and the, it is cluster and the, things are so much tighter and closer; is there anything about extending that house that could endanger the house, cause any kind of structural problems, because it is, everything is already so tight?


MR. MILKY:  Right, well what we do is, we build a brick wall around the entire perimeter of every house and all it’s going to do, that back line is the brick wall.  What it’s going to do is make her back yard small, in that one corner.  She’s going to have a small backyard.  There’s, yeah there’s the brick wall, that’ll go around it and all it’s going to do is turn – what she’s going to do, her house is going to be twisted; so that’s going to put here a little closer in this one corner and then it’s going to go back out, that’s all it’s going to do.  It’s not exceeding the neighborhood property.


MS. DORSEY:  But you’re not, you’re saying it’s not going to affect anything structurally or with lines, any kind of -


MR. MILKY:  That’s correct, it’s not.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions for Mr. Milky?  And Mr. Towery did you care to, have anything that you wanted to present to the Board?

TESTIMONY OF MR. PAT TOWERY:


MR. TOWERY:  No, sir, Mr. Chairman. I, this was found out by the builders, he mentioned while ago, Todd, and he caught the problem right before he was going to build.  We were on vacation and he pulled out the string lines and he called us while we were on vacation and he stopped immediately and said there’s a small problem we need to have addressed.  The next day we met with he, the developer, and immediately we called the Zoning people, Mr. Geo Price, and we went to work on the problem at that time.  I think it’s going to be a plus to me because I’ll have less back yard to cut [laughter].  Thank you very much.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions by Members of the Board for -


MR. TOLBERT:  Just one other question.  The, are the easements on the, all the easements and utilities on the backside?


MR. MILKY:  The easement utilities are all in the front, we’re maintaining that whole 15, all of our utilities run across the front and we’re keeping all of that.  There’s nothing in the back, where we’re going, there’s no utilities in the back of these at all.  It’s all at the front.  And so we’re, and from the street, no one will know, it has the same appearance as every other house in there.  We’re maintaining 15’ on the front, so it will be lined up with every other house.  It’s just that back corner, which is no utilities or anything in the back.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions?  Alright, thank you ladies and gentlemen. There’s no one else signed up either in the favor of or opposition of this request.  The Chair will entertain discussion.


MS. PERKINS:  Mr. Chairman I must say this is the first time, I think, I’ve been sitting on this Board, that the our book, our pamphlet is right, they’re requesting, they’re asking, they haven’t already built, so I applaud them for that.  That may seem simplistic to the audience, but we, who have been sitting on this Board, have oftentimes seen builders come in and they’re requesting something but it’s already done; so I have a difficulty understanding that.  So I’m applauding these people for doing that.  I did  want to say that.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, any further discussion by any Member of the Board?  Hearing none the Chair will entertain a motion.


MS. PERKINS:  Mr. Chairman I’ll make the motion that 05-83 Variance be granted.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  05-82.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh okay, sorry for that.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.


MR. BRANHAM:  Have to state the hardship.


MS. PERKINS:  Irregular shape of the land.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.  It’s been moved and seconded to approve this requested Variance, 05-82.  All in favor please signify by raising your hand, opposed?

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. & Mrs. Towery, you have your request.  Mr. Price will be in touch.  Mr. Price, next case please.

CASE NO. 05-83 V:


MR. PRICE:  The next item is Item I, Case 05-83 Variance.  The applicant is Maurice Wise.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a Variance to encroach into the required side yard setbacks in an RS-2 single-family residential zoned district.  The location is 1630 Albritton Road.  The existing land use is residential.  The subject property has a 1,717 square foot residential structure that was constructed in about 1959.  It’s in, I guess it’s Mossley Hills subdivision.  It’s a pretty old, older, it’s an older subdivision.  And the proposed structure, which is already there, of course, will encroach into the required side yard setback by 3’.  Let me, I want to kind of clarify something.  If you look at the plat that’s, that was given to you, it’s actually 9’, so it’s only 1’ from the property line, but the RS-2 setbacks require a combined total of at least 13’, with no side less than 4, so that’s were the 3’ setback request is coming from, or Variance, encroachment request. 


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, Mr. Wise would you explain to the Board what it is you want to do please?

TESTIMONY OF MR. MAURICE WISE:


MR. WISE:  Yes, sir.  I’d just like to say that there’s no excuse for not knowing your zoning codes and the new procedures about building and constructing.  But, when we purchased that house, in 1984, we’ve been there 21 years, we’ve always tried to do new improvements and additions to the house.  Right now, presently I have my wife, a 23-year-old daughter and a 16-year-old daughter and right now they’re sharing one single bedroom together.  And what I was trying to do, we’ve always looked at the carport as, possibly within the future, enclosing the carport for livable space, for additional room.  It would not hinder the actual structure of the building, we have sidewalls and, basically, what I’m going to do is, if approved, just enclose the proper walls.  As you look at the far side there, we’re just going to enclose the front and the side and the back, well which the front would have a door and the back would have a door in it.  Basically, I didn’t know about the 10’ Variance, but after I was told about it, I said, well I have to comply with it.  But what I was looking at, I don’t foresee, the position of my house, I don’t see where it would really interfere or hurt the main road or neighbors on either side of me, far as if we were allowed to enclose that carport.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  So in essence, you’re going to put a fourth wall on that carport?


MR. WISE:  Excuse me, sir?


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  In essence, you’re just going to put a fourth wall on that carport?


MR. WISE:  Yes, sir.


MS. DORSEY:  Enclose.


MS. PERKINS:  Enclose it; okay that’s what, okay.


MR. TOLBERT:  Yeah.


MR. BRANHAM:  Well then, Mr. Chairman, maybe I might be wrong, but I think if we vote in favor of that, you would be putting the whole carport in, to conform to the zoning code.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That’s right.


MR. BRANHAM:  Not just the enclosing of it but the whole works, the whole carport.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well because it’s nonconforming.


MR. BRANHAM:  That’s right.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It needs the Variance in order to make any modifications to it.


MR. BRANHAM:  Right.


MS. DORSEY:  It just makes it conforming.


MR. TOLBERT:  Yeah.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Yes, that’s correct.  If it were, if it did not encroach on the setback, you could do it simply by getting a building permit without having to come to the Board.


MR. BRANHAM:  Right.


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Would you agree to that Mr. Price?


MR. PRICE:  Yes, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any questions for Mr. Wise?


MR. BRANHAM:  So did, Mr., the carport was built in 1959, I believe the house was built in 1959?


MR. WISE:  Yes, sir.


MR. BRANHAM:  And the carport was built at that time?


MR. WISE:  Yes, sir it was, when we moved into the property, it was already built.


MS. DORSEY:  That was previous to any zoning requirement.


MR. WISE:  Yes, ma’am.


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions for Mr. Wise?  Alright, thank you, sir.


MR. WISE:  Thank you.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I have two people signed up in opposition, Charlene Chappell.

TESTIMONY OF MS. CHARLENE CHAPPELL:


MS. CHAPPELL:  Hi, thank you Mr. Chairman.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Would you state your name for the Record.


MS. CHAPPELL:  Sorry, Charlene Chappell.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Chappell, I’m sorry.


MS. CHAPPELL:  Okay, that’s alright.  Mr. Wise has been, first of all, it is a life estate home of which my sister and I are the owners.  My mother does live there.  She knows more of the history of the home with regard, I think the, well I know, I live there too, but the carport was added sometime after the house was built.  It was not all done at the same time.  That’s one point of contention.  I’m a little bit confused, when I read about the 9’ setback, this says side yard, something I read, out there, said rear yard.  The carport is currently 13” from the property, the wall is 13”, the brick wall, okay.  So I think the concerns we have is what it’s going to look like when it’s closed in.  Of course, when it’s carport, it’s open, you can still the trees.  From a maintenance standpoint, how are they going to maintain any, anything that they do to do the end of this, without coming on my mother’s property?  If they don’t have at least 3’, and that’s, let me get back to the – we, what we are asking Mr. Wise to do, is to maintain a 3’, from the outside of the foundation, to the property line; that’s all we’re asking.  Cause there isn’t, and I’ve got some pictures here if you’d like to see them, unfortunately I don’t’ have but one copy.  But there is only 13” from that wall to the property line now, so I’m unclear about the 9’, because there isn’t 9’ to be had, so -


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Chappell, I may be confused, are you in essence stating that you want Mr. Wise to cut 2’ off the carport?


MS. CHAPPELL:  No, sir.  The contention is the enclosing of the carport.


MS. DORSEY:  But the foundations already there, with the carport.


MS. CHAPPELL:  Right.


MS. PERKINS:  So how does he maintain, I’m looking at a picture here, how does he maintain, I heard you say something about, how is he going to maintain that 3” space?


MS. CHAPPELL:  Well with it open, there’s not really anything they maintain.  And they can walk there now; they can walk down that side.


MS. PERKINS:  What would be able, can I ask you this?


MS. CHAPPELL:  Sure.


MS. PERKINS:  What would he be able to maintain if it were closed, what would happen?


MS. CHAPPELL:  Whatever he uses to enclose it with, I don’t know if he has to power wash siding, or whether he has to paint wood, or whatever.  I assumed that if he closes it in, there’s going to be some sort of maintenance along that end of the house, whereas it’s open now and the brick doesn’t require any maintenance.


MS. DORSEY:  And you’re saying, that in order to maintain it, he would have to somehow go on your property?


MS. CHAPPELL:  Yes.


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions for Mrs. Chappell?


MR. TOLBERT:  Is there any, anything growing up that he have to maintain right now?


MS. CHAPPELL:  No, I don’t believe so, I believe it’s siding in the gable and that’s all that’s on that end except the brick pillars and a brick wall.  One thing that, if y’all notice, some of those pictures show a drain coming in down there.  That’s something new and we don’t know what that drain is for and that is right on the property line.  You can see where it’s dug up, I don’t know if you can see the big, black pipe, but it’s in between the fence and the, and that garage and I don’t, it’s coming from the back and so I don’t, I don’t really know the purpose of that.  And we’re in favor of Mr. Wise improving his property and we were just wondering, since the, since the existing structure was there, if the footings could be dug back, you know, away from that end and him close up to that point?  And my understanding, that would not bother the roof at all in that particular scenario and all he would be doing, would be not just building.  Because the house, I don’t know if you can tell by my pictures of not, they’re not very good, but the house is kind of on an angle and he’s only, his poured driveway is only 24” from the property line and that’s no problem.  We’re not asking him to rebuild his house.  He’s a very good neighbor and we just want to be sure that, we don’t want it to get there and then it be a problem and then somebody say, well why didn’t you say something, you know, before now.


MS. DORSEY:  You’re concerned about any potential impact on your home, or your property, from -


MS. CHAPPELL:  Absolutely, both from a resale value and the dollar value and the ability to resell the house.


MS. PERKINS:  Ms. Chappell?


MS. CHAPPELL:  I’m sorry.


MS. PERKINS:  I’d like to ask you a question.


MS. CHAPPELL:  Okay.



MS. PERKINS:  You said that your parents own that home and you grew up in it.


MS. CHAPPELL:  Yes, ma’am.


MS. PERKINS:  And so when they added the carport, it was nonconforming.  So did you, I mean, when, I understood, I think, in your earlier testimony, that you said when that house was built it did not have a carport and you added it on.


MS. CHAPPELL:  That’s correct, that’s correct.


MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  If he would put brick there, as opposed to some of the other materials, would that still be an objection of yours?  I’m just asking, I’m trying to -


MS. CHAPPELL:  Well, I mean, with no windows or doors?  Well he wouldn’t be able to put a door because he wouldn’t be able to get out of it; I guess a window.  I mean, you know, I still think that, I still think - my personal opinion is that a home, you should be able to walk to your backyard from either side of your home, unless you’re in a patio home environment where everything’s kind of cordoned off, you know, and it’s not designed that way.


MS. PERKINS:  If he, if he, oh I’m sorry, go ahead.


MR. PRICE:  I just want to point something out.  His request is for, to essentially for you to make this nonconforming structure, conforming.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh, okay.


MR. PRICE:  We aren’t into how the design of the, any proposed design of the structure.


MS. PERKINS:  Okay, okay.


MR. BRANHAM:  But, I think I’ve got a question that could have something to do when the Zoning Ordinance was put into effect.  You said the house was not built with a carport.


MS. CHAPPELL:  That’s correct.


MR. BRANHAM:  Carport was added later.


MS. CHAPPPELL:  Yes, sir.


MR. BRANHAM:  Carport added.


MS. CHAPPELL:  By the way, she’s Iris Chappell.  She’s also on the list.


MS. DORSEY:  Can I just get clarification before - who owns the house?  Do y’all live next door or, I’m confused.

TESTIMONY OF MS. IRIS CHAPPELL:


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  No, it’s, it’s my house under life estate.


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  And I’m the daughter and I, the deed is mine.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  And she’s the daughter and, so, I can live there as long as I live.


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  At my death it becomes hers.


MS. DORSEY:  So is this gentleman your tenant?


MS. PERKINS:  Which house are you talking about?


MS. DORSEY:  I’m not sure.


MR. BRANHAM:  We’re talking about this house, who owns this house?


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  Maurice Wise.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh, okay.


MR. BRANHAM:  Okay, okay.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  I live right next door -


MS. DORSEY:  Okay, I get it.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  - where there’s just 13”.


MR. BRANHAM:  But you use to own this house or you’ve never owned it?


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  No, no.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  No, I’ve never owned this house.  It was originally owned by a Mr. May Hugh.  It was sold in about 1956 to another person who in turn built the carport, I would imagine around 1958 or 1959, without a building permit and without any real contractor; just the fellow that he worked with at Orkin Exterminating, helped him do it.


MR. BRANAHM:  Okay.

[Inaudible conversation]


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  Her yard is to the left of that picture, which is 18, sorry, 13” from the fence to the -


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That carport and the vehicle in it is Mr. Wise’s?


MS. C. CAHPPELL:  Yes, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  Yes.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Do one of you have anything further you want to bring to the Board’s attention?


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  Only that if in turn I should sell my house -


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  Or want to build.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  Or want to build and extend, what would the law be then?


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That’s a separate question.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  Oh, alright.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I don’t think that’s within the purview of what we’re looking at today.  That’d have to be taken up separately.


MS. I. CHAPPELL:  Thank you.


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  Yes, what I think she was trying to say was if she built within her rights up to the 4’, I believe that’s what’s in the building for that particularly subdivision; is then you would only have 5’ between two structures and she should be able to build up to four on hers.


MR. PRICE:  Even though that’s, this is a separate question, that would also depend on what the footage is on the other side, because it’s stated -


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Of course, sure.


MR. PRICE:  - they have to have a combined total.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That I think you can discuss with Mr. Price and I think he can answer that question for you.


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  Okay, thank you.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Thank you, ma’am.  Mr. Wise do you have any matters you want to bring up in rebuttal to the opposition that you’ve heard?


MR. WISE:  Only thing I’d like to say is that, if you look at the structure of my property, only thing I’m doing is enclosing the existing wall.  I’m going to have a door at the backside of the carport and I’m going to have a door at the front side of the carport.  I can maintain any type of cleaning, or whatever I need to do within my, I’m still on my property line, I’m not within compliance with the Zoning Board, but I’m in, within my property line.  I would not be on their property when I had to clean something or wash a wall, or something of that nature.  And I’m very, just as upset that they would even question me trying to improve my property.  They just built a garage onto their property.  Why can’t I enclose my carport to better my value of my property?  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Wise, have you decided, at this point, what type of material you intend to use to enclose?


MR. WISE:  Vinyl siding.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Vinyl siding.


MR. WISE:  Yes, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And are you going to take that vinyl siding, it looks like the in the front, and I assume probably in the back, that you’ve got about two courses of brick that come out to, toward your house; from the corner of your carport, toward your house, you’ve got about two courses of brick.


MR. WISE:  All that’s going to be enclosed in together.  All that’s going to be just one closed in.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Stay as it is?


MR. WISE:  Yes, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.


MS. PERKINS:  What did you, is there a reason for the drainage pipe there Mr. Wise?


MR. WISE:  Well, I was going to do that because when the gutters, if, you know, they have a lot of pine trees in their yard, and the pine straw gets into the gutters, a lot of times the water runs over.  So in order to keep a good drainage where, once I close in the carport, that the water wouldn’t come back into my actual space, I was going to use that as a drain and I have it, like, 1 ½” lower than the carport cement slab that’s existing right now.  I have it 1 ½’ down, so that I can make a drainage, so that in case that the pine straw get in there, I can’t control that, so I thought the best thing to do is put a drain there so I could just let the water run off to the side of the building.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions for Mr. Wise?  Alright, thank you, sir.


MR. WISE:  Thank you.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  The Chair will entertain discussion by the Board.  Hearing no discussion, the Chair will entertain a motion.


MS. C. CHAPPELL:  Excuse me, can I address them again?


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No, ma’am, you’ve had your opportunity, I’m sorry.  


MR. BRANHAM:  Mr. Chairman, I’d like to make the motion that Special – Variance 05 83 be approved and that their hardship would be that the carport, the house, the home and the carport, was built before zoning regulations were in effect.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded that the request for a Variance, 05-83, be approved.  All in favor signify by raising your hand.  Opposed?

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert; Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Wise, you have your request.  Mr. Price will be in touch with you.  Mr. Price next case please.

CASE NO. 05-84 V:


MR. PRICE:  Next case is Item J, Case 05-84 Variance.  The applicant is Lester Wolfe.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a Variance to encroach into the required side yard setback in a RU zoned district.  The location is 1201 Mount Elon Church Road.  It’s 3/4 ‘s of an acre.  The subject property has a 1,215 square foot residential, a manufactured home.  The proposed structure will encroach into the required side yard setbacks by 7’.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, Ms. Wolfe, do you want to explain to the Board what it is that you would like to do?

TESTIMONY OF MS. MYRTLE WOLFE:


MS. WOLF:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  I have, as you can see, a double-wide mobile home, we bought, purchased three years ago and I have enough room except I don’t have a dining room and I don’t have a very big kitchen and I have a large family.  From the three children I have, I have 14 grandchildren and 19 great-grandchildren and since my husband developed this cancer, all these, the whole family, from even as far a Minnesota, he’s from Minnesota, his families came, all my family, from North Carolina.  I have grandkids in Arizona, Oklahoma, Kansas, everybody’s coming and I just don’t have room for everybody to sit down and be fed.  I have a small table with four chairs, in that small kitchen.  This young fellow came in and he looked at my whole trailer inside, and I actually, I really do need this space so I can feed these family when they come to visit my husband while he’s sick.  Everybody’s afraid that, he’s taking treatments and we just don’t think these treatments are doing anything to help him and we’re afraid, they’ve give him 10 months to a year and everybody wants to come and see him before he gets to where he can’t talk and he won’t be able to, you know, have anything to do with - his great-grandchildren he’s never seen.  And I really would appreciate this room, this extra space for a dining room.  My son is a contractor.  He’s doing the building and my son-in-law, in North Carolina, he owns a roofing company, he’s doing the roofing.  And we have a electric company, a Mr. Henson, up Mount Elon Church Road, that’s where we live at 1201, he’s the electrician.  He’s agreed to do the electrician for me on this room.  I’ll let my son talk, if he wants to talk.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any questions for Mrs. Wolfe?  Alright, Mr. Wolfe.

TESTIMONY OF MR. ROBERT WOLFE:


MR. WOLFE:  My name is Robert Wolfe, sir.  Like she said, my dad wasn’t able to be here.  The bottom line is, her kitchen area and her dining room area is pretty much incorporated into one room.  They actually have probably 5 x 6, maybe a 6 x 6 area to sit and eat in.  She wants the room, you know, as a dining area and a storage area to, you know, just make, the bottom line is, make more space.


MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Wolfe, I understand there’s a septic line or something in the back that prevents you from, from enlarging on the back.


MR. WOLFE:  Yes, ma’am.  The septic tank is built right behind the trailer.  It’s set right behind the trailer.


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.


MR. WOLFE:  The drain-filled area is off to like the left, left side of the trailer and the septic tank is set pretty much on the right side.  


MS. DORSEY:  Okay.


MR. WOLFE:  If we were to build to the left of the trailer, it would pretty much put their dining room, going outside of a bedroom.


MS. DORSEY:  There’s a driveway there as well.


MR. WOLFE:  Yes, ma’am, yes, ma’am, the problem is, that would’ve, probably infringed on the road that comes in on that side.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay, any other question for Mr. Wolfe?  Alright, thank you.


MR. WOLFE:  Thank you, sir.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No one side up in opposition.  The Chair will entertain discussion.


MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman I was going to ask a question, but he answered it for me, so I’m pretty much satisfied.


MR. BRANHAM:  What was your question, if I may ask?


MR. TOLBERT:  I was going if he could, ask him could he move the trailer, but he, I got my answer to the question because of the septic tank and the drainage, so now I understand.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  The Chair will entertain a motion.


MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chair I move that 05-84, request for a Variance, be approved on the grounds of it meets the criteria.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  The grounds of what?


MS. DORSEY:  Meets the criteria for a Variance on every count.


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.



CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded that request 05-84 be approved, all those in favor signify by raising their hand.  No one in opposition.

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Brown; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  You have your request.   Mr. Price will be in touch you.


MR. PRICE:  Mr. Brown, this just occurred to me.  We need to reorder the agenda because, and move the reconsideration case before we get to the approval of the June minutes, because that reconsideration comes from the June meeting.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a motion to reorder the agenda and move reconsideration of Case 05-75 SE to Item 4 on the agenda?


MR. TOLBERT:  So moved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MR. BRANHAM:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to reorder the agenda to make reconsideration of Case 05-75 SE, the Item 4 on the agenda.  All those in favor signify by raising their hand.

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alight, so moved, so done.  Go ahead Mr. Price.



MR. PRICE:  Okay, we’re in the Other Business, at this time.  We have a reconsideration of Case 05-75 Special Exception.  This case came to you last month. The applicant was Mary Lindsay.  She requested that a Special Exception to permit the establishment of a family daycare on property zoned RS-2.  The location is e38 Penrose Drive.  She was, the proposed request was for a daycare for a maximum of six children.  The ages will range from newborn to two years of age, and the hours of operation were 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and this is in the Meadow Lake subdivision.  As stated, she came in the June meeting and her request was denied and she is requesting a reconsideration based on some of the findings of the Board for the denial.  She feels that she’s addressed those issues and she’d like to present to the Board how she’s addressed those issues and ask that you reconsider it, grant reconsideration so this can be placed on the August Agenda.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well, the question for Mr. Tolbert is, how we act on this request?  I think the request has to stand or fall on its own merits unless it’s a consensus of the Board that they want to hear witnesses.  Normally, you don’t hear witnesses and the decision is based on the information presented to the Board in writing.  Is there any desire on the part of the Board to hear witness?


MS. DORSEY:  I would like to hear what Ms. Lindsay had to say.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, is Ms. Lindsay here?  Ms. Lindsay, would you state your name for the Board and then explain why you’re requesting the Board to consider reconsidering your request.

TESTIMONY OF MS. MARY LINDSAY:


MS. LINDSAY:  My name is Mary Lindsay, 338 Penrose Drive, Columbia.  And I’m requesting, hoping that you would give me another chance.  I think that we clarified all of the things that was asked of us to do.  And, like I said, I’ve had this daycare 10 years and it’s just hard to, just imagine not being working, you know.  And I think that I’ve clarified, you know, everything that I was asked to do.  And I just pray that you would just, you know, give me another chance, or whatever, that I may be able to keep my daycare open.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any question for Ms. Lindsay?


MS. DORSEY:  Ms. Lindsay, could you clarified, give us more information about exactly what you did.  The concern, my main concern was safety and the amount of materials in the back yard.


MS. LINDSAY:  Yeah, we cleared for, we cleared all that up, and we built a shed around the lawnmower, or whatever.  And for the deck, we put a safety lock on there.  Of course, my children never go out there.  They’re, like they said, they’re two to seven months old to two, they never go outside there anyway.  And, but we did put a safety lock on there and everything we had, we cleared it up.


MS. DORSEY:  And what did you do to your fence?  I noticed when I visited your house yesterday -


MS. LINDSAY:  We put up a private fence.  We did put a private fence up.


MS. DORSEY:  And the door there, I didn’t notice this initially, but the door, leading outside to the back, in case you had happened to take any children outside, there is a, actually a separate door to the back that isn’t even on the deck, is that true?


MS. LINDSAY:  That’s true.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions of Ms. Lindsay?


MS. PERKINS:  And that wood fence is enclosing the, is that a tractor or a trailer?


MS. LINDSAY:  Yeah, yeah, yeah, we closed that up, everything was closed, everything’s cleared.


MS. DORSEY:  And the entire yard has a privacy fence?


MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.


MS. PERKINS:  Okay, now the entire yard has a privacy -


MS. LINDSAY:  The back yard, you know, not the front.


MS. DORSEY:  Backyard.


MS. PERKINS:  Okay.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Further questions for Ms. Lindsay?  Alright, thank you, ma’am.  The Chair will hear discussion from the Board Members.


MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chair, I probably, I feel like I raised the most objections when Ms. Lindsay came before us before, because I’m always concerned about the safety of children.  I visited the site and actually this was a rather complicated case, cause initially Ms. - the house was cited for materials in the backyard and it was found that Ms. Lindsay had a daycare, which was, you know, DSS had been following the daycare, but she had not known to get the zoning Special Exception.  And the debris in the backyard had a lot to do with her husband’s business.  Anyway, I visited the property yesterday and I was really surprised.  I was shocked that they had taken such measures to enclose all of the materials that her husband uses, and completely enclose the yard with privacy fence, so there’s any dogs, there was a dog pen on one side, which it would be impossible now to fear for the children.  I just, I think they’ve taken measures to address, at least the issues that I had and, from what I could see, perhaps they deserve some sort of reconsideration from the Board.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further discussion?


MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman I was not here, but listening to the evidence that was presented and Ms. Dorsey’s recommendation that she did go forth and make a strong effort to improve, and that’s a sign of caring to me and that would render me to partially consider that reconsideration, because that’s the main issue, is the safety of the children.  We want to make sure that if you go promptly and take care of an area, instead of letting it just linger on, it does not present to me a caring factor.  So I take upon myself to believe that that’s her intentions, to be responsible for the kids and that would definitely warrant some approval from me.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further discussion?  Hearing none the Chair will entertain a motion.


MR. BRANHAM:  Mr. Brown, if I could get a clarification.  The motion is to rehear the case at out next visit?


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That’s correct.


MR. BRANHAM:  It would have to be, the property would have to be posted again.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That’s correct.


MR BRANHAM:  Thank you.


MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chair, I’ll make the motion, barring any further discussion, that Case 05-75 Special Exception request for reconsideration be granted, be approved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?


MR. TOLBERT:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded that Case 05-75 SE reconsideration be granted, all those in favor signify by raising their hand, opposed?

[Approved:  Dorsey, Tolbert, Perkins; Opposed:  Brown, Branham; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  All right, it’s three to two.  The reconsideration is granted.  The case will be reheard next month. 


MR. PRICE:  Now we’re up to the approval of the minutes for the June 1st meeting.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a motion to approve the minutes for June 1st?


MR. TOLBERT:  So moved.


MR. FARRAR:  If you could approve them except for the minutes pertaining to the case that you voted to reconsider.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Oh, alright, yes, thank you - to approve the minutes with the exception of the, that portion of the minutes pertaining to Case 05-75 SE.  Is there a motion?


MR. TOLBERT:  So moved.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And a second?


MR. BRANHAM:  Second.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Seconded.  All in favor?  Done.

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young, Branch]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Price anything further to come before the Board?


MR. PRICE:  No, sir.  


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  In that case the July meeting of the Board is adjourned.


MR. BRANHAM:  I had, I had one item, Mr. Brown, if I may, that I had looked back on some records that I had.  Back in May, May 12th actually, we had a planning session, I think jointly with all Board Members and Council and so forth, and then the next one was set up for Tuesday, August the 23rd.  That one is still planned for August the 23rd as we know it right now, do you know where that’ll be?


MR. PRICE:  Still at the ETV building.  You’ll receive some further notification on that, but it’s -


MR. BRANHAM:  Just for planning purposes, I want to make sure I put that on my calendar, because I missed the first one.


MS. PERKINS:  And we only had to go to one, we didn’t have to go to this and that was a total of six hours, if you stayed there, we have to go to two sessions?


MR. BRANHAM:  What if you missed the first one?


MR. PRICE:  Three each.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh, they’re three hours each.


MR. PRICE:  You got three hours for the -


MR. TOLBERT:  Three hours for the first one, three hours for the second and three hours for the third?


MR. PRICE:  Yes.


MR. TOLBERT:  Okay.


MS. PERKINS:  And you will get us confirmation on August?


MR. PRICE:  Yeah, all of the information will be there, at least by the, by the time you get your next package, hopefully I’ll have all of that information.


MS. PERKINS:  Alright Mr. Price.


MR. TOLBET:  And let me just clarify, that is a condition, isn’t it?


MR. PRICE:  Yes.


MR. TOLBERT:  Okay.


MR. PRICE:  Required training.


MS. DORSEY:  Also, can we get the By-Laws and Rules and Procedure final versions?


MS. PERKINS:  Yeah from, that was interesting, you mean the Rules and Procedure that was presented at the, that -


MS. DORSEY:  That we, we redid.


MS. PERKINS:  Yeah, I thought that would have been - could we have copy so you can - 


MS. DORSEY:  We revised -


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  She’s talking the Rules and Procedures of the By-Laws that we, for this Board.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh, well yeah, I want that too.  I was wondering if you had any way of getting the Rules and Procedures that were presented at the Joint Session of the - 


MR. PRICE:  Yeah, I believe I have the, I have some of the packets, packages that were sent out, from the packet.


MS. PERKINS:  I got the packet, I want the – was it in the packet?


MR. PRICE:  Yeah, all of the information was in there.


MS. PERKINS:  Yeah, but I mean the actual, you know, were their Board adopted in, in addition to the Roberts Rule of Order, they kind of, what are you doing Brad?


MS. PERKINS:  There was, you know, they had some additional, was that in that folder?


MR. PRICE:  Yeah they had some that was also in there.


MS. PERKINS:  Oh it was in there, okay.


MR. PRICE:  Yes, ma’am, I think I have one down in the office - I’ll look.


MS. PERKINS:  I have that then.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Also, if you haven’t done so, fill our your sheet for Suzie.  Y’all got your sheets? 

[Adjournment at 3:05 p.m.]

